
20 February 2020

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
will meet on

Monday, 2 March 2020
beginning at

7:00 pm
in the

Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF

TO: Councillor Cynthia Garton (Chair)
Councillor Janice Asman (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Margaret Allingham Councillor Ian Corben
Councillor Richard Gomer Councillor Keith House
Councillor Lucy Jurd Councillor Rupert Kyrle
Councillor Derek Pretty Councillor Bruce Tennent
Councillor Adrian Trace Councillor Tim Bearder

Staff Contacts: Nikki Dunne, Democratic Services Officer, 02380 688298 
Email:nikki.dunne@eastleigh.gov.uk. Please email 
Democratic.Services@eastleigh.gov.uk to register to speak before 
the meeting.

Julia Birt, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 8437; Email: 
julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk

GAETANA WISEMAN
Head of Performance and Governance

_____________________________________________________________________

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website - 
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings

as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and other 
languages, upon request.

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the 
meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To 

register please contact the Democratic Services Officer above.
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording 

and photography at meetings open to the public, and Councillors will be using 
tablet devices to access committee papers.

Eastleigh House
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

1

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA

1. Public Participation    

2. Apologies    

3. Minutes    (Pages 5 - 12) 

To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 27 January 2020.

4. Declarations of Interest     

Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.

5. Chair's Report    (Verbal Report)

6. Local Area Manager's Report    (Verbal Report)

7. Financial Management    (Pages 13 - 20)

8. Hedge End West End and Botley Youth Grants 2019 - 20    (Pages 21 - 26)

9. Hedge End West End and Botley Various Roads Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)    
(Pages 27 - 44)

10. Cheltenham Gardens Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)    (Pages 45 - 62)

11. Berrywood School Traffic Study    (Pages 63 - 78)

12. St James' School Traffic Study    (Pages 79 - 94)

13. Planning Appeals     

The Head of Legal Services to report:-

(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:-

River Cottage, 2 Hamblewood, Botley. SO30 2GX (Ref: F/19/85906)

Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for the 
conversion, extension and alteration of the existing two storey side 
extension and single storey garage to form a self-contained 1-bedroom 
dwelling with rationalisation of vehicle parking and landscaping.

This was a delegated decision. 

(b) that the following appeals have been allowed:-

Land to the rear of Seddul Bahr (The Meadow), Allington Lane, West End, 
SO30 3HP (Ref: EA/19/86426)

Appeal against an enforcement notice (both costs and appeal allowed).

2



(c) that the following appeals have been dismissed:-

24 Bursledon Road, Hedge End, SO30 0BW (Ref: H/19/85625)

Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission for a 
‘replacement roof with rooms in.’

This was a delegated decision. 

Venmarden, Pardoe Close, Hedge End, Southampton, SO30 0NE (Ref: 
H/19/85225)

Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission for 
alterations to roof to incorporate the front and rear dormers into the main 
roof.

This was a delegated decision.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Monday, 30 March 2020 at 7:00 pm

in the Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's 
Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news -

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews

3

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE

Monday, 27 January 2020  (7:00 pm – 8:45 pm)

PRESENT:

Councillor Garton (Chair); Councillors Asman, Allingham, Corben, Gomer, 
House, Jurd, Kyrle, Pretty, Trace and Bearder

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Tennent

________________________________________

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)

24. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

A resident raised a point in relation to the planting of wildflowers to 
increase biodiversity. They requested that all future planning approvals 
contain provision for swift boxes and wildlife corridors.

The Chair explained that ecology reports are considered as part of 
planning considerations and thanked the resident for their comments.

A resident of the Midlands Estate raised concerns that planning 
permission had been granted last June for parking bays and the parking 
was still not in place.

The Chair confirmed that Eastleigh Borough Council had liaised with the 
developer and they were trying to obtain temporary parking. The Local 
Area Manager was continuing to work on this and would discuss with other 
relevant Officers. 

25. MINUTES

RESOLVED -

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 30 September 2019 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

26. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor House declared a personal interest in agenda item 12, which 
related to the planning application Unit 3, Lankester House, 1 Freegrounds 
Road, Hedge End, Southampton, SO30 0HG – X/19/86760

27. CHAIR'S REPORT

The Chair reported the following: 

5

Agenda Item 3



2

Woodhouse Lane  
Work had commenced on site for the construction of the Deer Park School 
at Woodhouse Lane. The timetable for the opening of the school would be 
September 2021. Councillor Garton explained that staff from Hampshire 
County Council and Eastleigh Borough Council were continuing to work in 
partnership with Wildern Academy Trust. Planning applications for an 
artificial turf pitch, extension to the sports hall and grass football pitches 
were being developed for consideration later this year. 

Former Budgens Site, Hedge End  
The Chair explained that demolition of the former Budgens building had 
taken place and that temporary car parking for the demolition site was now 
under construction. The existing car park had remained open throughout 
this project and the bus stop and shelter were still in operation. 

Boorley Park 
Councillor Garton was pleased to attend the official opening of the Boorley 
Park Primary School last week where 30 children in the Reception year 
were all enjoying the new modern facilities. The nearby community centre, 
Multi Use Games Area and sports pavilion were nearly completed subject 
to resolving some snagging items. She explained that there had been 
great interest in the allotments even though these were still under 
construction. The developers had reported that 520 homes were now 
occupied and the access road from Maddoxford Lane has been open 
since October. 

Itchen Valley Country Park 
The Chair informed that a project team had been established to continue 
to identify short and long term priorities at the country park. Mains 
electricity were due to be connected in the next few weeks. Foul water 
drainage, car parking and a tree survey were other key areas of work. A 
long-term master plan would be devised after these priorities had been 
completed. Councillor Garton was delighted to welcome Simon Gould, the 
new Country Parks Manager who had taken over management of Itchen 
Valley Country Park from Tracey Churcher.

28. LOCAL AREA MANAGER'S REPORT

Hatch Farm  
A working group comprised of Parish and Borough Councillors, staff and a 
representative of Barnsland Residents’ Association had met on the day of 
the meeting. The scope and membership of the of the working was 
discussed and a timetable for the community projects would be agreed at 
the next meeting. 

Wildern Swimming Pool roof  

6



3

The Local Area Manager informed the meeting that this project had  
commenced in November 2019 and as was previously reported, it had 
involved installing a new roof over the main pool with new spectator 
seating. The project has been carefully managed due to being on a school 
site. There has been an agreement that noisy construction work will not 
take place during exam times.

Woodstock Close  
A taskforce of volunteers met on 18th January to tidy up the Eco Park at 
Woodstock Close in Hedge End. Activities involved litter picking, cutting 
back the vegetation and coppicing small trees to enable a small path to be 
formed. The Local Area Manager confirmed that further tidy up days were 
planned. 

Cheltenham Gardens  
The Local Area Manager reported that the balancing pond behind 
Cheltenham Gardens in Hedge End was transformed at the end of last 
year. Specialist contractors were employed by the Committee to carry out 
clearance work which means that the water is flowing more freely, and 
wildlife had returned. The Local Area Manager had also requested 
additional safety signage which had now been installed. 

Flood resilience  
The Local Area Manager reported that thirteen properties in the following 
roads, Hobbs Lane, Whitebeam Road, Pardoe Close, Oaktree Gardens, 
Hindmarch Crescent, Little Park Close and Bursledon Road will benefit 
from flood resilience measures which have been funded by this Committee 
in partnership with the Environment Agency. The Environment Agency had 
been completing legal agreements with four householders and then 
installation of these measure would commence, hopefully by mid-
February. 

Team meeting  
The Local Area Manager advised that the next team meeting would be 
held on Monday 17th February 2020. She explained that at this meeting, 
an update on the proposals and subsequent consultation for an Ageas 
Bowl match day Traffic Regulation Order would be presented by traffic 
specialists. Also, there would be an update on the Section 106 agreement 
for Winchester Street.

29. AGEAS BOWL REVIEW 2019

Consideration was given to the Ageas Bowl Review 2019 where it 
was recommended that the Hedge End, West End and Botley Local 
Area Committee consider the review of complaints, comments and 
recommendations for the Ageas Bowl during the 2019 season. 

RESOLVED – 

7



4

That the review be considered.

30. UPPER ST HELENS ROAD, HEDGE END - EXPERIMENTAL TRAFFIC 
REGULATION ORDER (TRO)

The Committee considered a report by the Senior Engineering Specialist 
(Agenda Item 7a) concerning Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) for the 
Hedge End, West End and Botley area.

RESOLVED – 

(1) The Committee considered the outcome of the public 
consultation, delegated to the Head of Legal Services the 
authority to implement all stages (excluding confirmation) 
of a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) in Upper St Helens 
Road, Stockholm Drive, Heath House Lane and Lyons 
Place, Hedge End with the following amendments to the 
existing Experimental TRO: 

a. A reduction in length of “No waiting at any time” 
restriction of 20 metres on the north-east side of 
Stockholm Drive resulting in a restriction from the 
junction with Upper St Helens Road for 10 metres 
south-eastwards

b. Removal of approximately 22 metres of “no waiting at 
anytime” restriction on the south side of Upper St 
Helens Road between Lyons Place and Stockholm 
Drive 

(2) The signs and road markings relating to the “No waiting  
Monday to Friday 10 – 11am & 2 – 3pm” restrictions on the 
south side of Upper St Helens Road are removed.

(3) The Committee commissioned a review of the existing 
permanent restriction on Upper St Helens Road to ascertain 
whether additional kerbside parking can be accommodated 
to meet existing demands six months after the 
implementation of the Traffic Order as detailed in 
recommendation 1.

(NOTES: (A) A number of residents spoke against the TRO. 
Concerns raised included ongoing health and safety problems 
due to large volume of vehicle movements, lack of spaces 
relative to the number of houses and lawfulness for 
implementation of the Order; and
(B) Several residents expressed support for the TRO. 
Specifically, one resident, who explained that the yellow lines do 

8



5

provide safety through keeping the view out of their driveway 
unobstructed. An additional resident stated that there were an 
excessive number of vehicles which park outside their house 
and therefore they supported the TRO.)

The Head of Legal Services responded to resident concerns by 
explaining that the Order is experimental in nature and therefore 
cannot be expected to have one particular effect.

31. COMMUNITY GRANTS 2019/2020

Consideration was given to the recommendation that the 
Committee approve the grants as set out in Appendix 1 to the 
report. 

Councillor Gomer reported that he had an interest as he is 
Governor of St James Primary School. 

RESOLVED – 

That the grants be approved. 

32. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Consideration was given to the report of the Local Manager 
(Agenda Item 10) which recommended that the Committee note the 
progress on identified projects during 2019 and approve the Hedge 
End, West End and Botley Local Area Action Plan 2020/21 shown 
in Appendix Two for adoption and publication 

RESOLVED  - 

(1) That the expenditure of £4,500 from the Committee’s 
reserves for 15 litter bins be approved;

(2) The allocation of the developer’s contribution of £6,991.20 
for the kitchen project that the Old School House, Hedge 
End, be approved;

(3) Expenditure of up to £4,350 from the Committee’s revenue 
budget for 9 flower towers be approved;

(4) The allocation of developers’ contributions of £100,000 
plus interest for the two play areas at Boorley Park be 
approved;

9



6

(5)The stated fees and charges for Itchen Valley Country 
Park effective from 1 April 2020 be approved; and 
(6) The increase of 30p to the parking tariffs for Hedge End  
Train Station car park and Stroudley Way are reviewed from 
1 April 2020 until 1 February 2022 be approved.

33. HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA ACTION PLAN 
2020/21

Consideration was given to the Local Area Action Plan whereby it 
was recommended that the Committee note the progress on 
identified projects and priorities during 2019 and approve the Hedge 
End, West End and Botley Local Area Action Plan 2020/21 shown 
in Appendix Two for adoption and publication.

RESOLVED – 

That the recommendations be approved.

34. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES

Housing and Development specialists gave a short presentation on 
guidelines that had to be taken into account when determining planning 
applications; in particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken 
into account.  This was set against the broader policy framework.

35. PLANNING APPLICATION - UNIT 3, LANKESTER HOUSE, 1 
FREEGROUNDS ROAD, HEDGE END, SOUTHAMPTON, SO30 0HG - 
X/19/86760

As Councillor House had declared an interest in this item, he left the room 
and did not vote on this item.

The Committee considered the report of the Development Management 
Specialist relating to the variation of condition 3 of prior notification 
J/17/80081 to extend opening hours X/19/86760.

The Committee was advised that the development would not be open to 
customers except  between the hours of 10am-5pm Monday to 
Wednesday, 10am-10pm Thursday to Saturday and 10am-4pm on 
Sundays or Bank Holidays. No external seating and tables would be used 
by customers during the hours of 5pm-10pm Thursday to Saturday to 
protect the amenity of occupiers of nearby properties.

RESOLVED -

10



7

That permission be refused on the grounds of adverse impact on 
neighbouring amenity from noise disturbance and highway safety 
due to increased parking.

36. PLANNING APPEALS

The Head of Legal Services reported: -

(a) that the following appeals had been lodged:-

Venmarden, Pardoe Close, Hedge End. SO30 0NE

Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for a 
single storey rear extension and pitched roof to incorporate existing 
front and rear dormers into main roof space (H/19/85225). 

Land at Peewit Hill, Bursledon, Southampton. SO31 8BL

Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for the 
retention of access gates (retrospective) (F/18/84421). 

24 Bursledon Road, Hedge End. SO30 0BW

Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for the 
raising of roof to provide second floor living accommodation. 

(b) that the following appeals had been dismissed: -

The Brambles, Stubbs Drove, Hedge End, SO30 0FU

Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission for the 
conversion of a double garage to an annexe with side extension 
(H/18/83824).

RESOLVED -

That the report be noted.

M6407

11



This page is intentionally left blank



HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday 2 March 2020 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Report of the Local Area Manager 

Recommendations

It is recommended that this Committee approves  

(1) The allocation of £2,000 from its revenue budget for the Park Sport scheme;

(2) The allocation of £5,000 from its reserves as a contribution towards the 
funding of Eastleigh Borough Council’s Senior Sports Development Officer 
post for 2020/21 and 2021/22;

(3) Renewed revenue funding of £5,500 as a contribution towards the Young 
People’s Wellbeing Service for 2020/21;

(4) The allocation of up to £16,500 to complete the Midlands Estate car parking 
improvement scheme;

(5) The allocation of £2,500 to both the Friday Night Project, Hedge End and the 
Cutbush Lane Youth Club, West End and £1,500 for youth activities at Boorley 
Park from the Committee’s revenue budget; and

(6) The developer’s contributions of £1,166,735.15, £1,507,379.28 and £83,255.56 
plus indexation are allocated to the Woodhouse Lane projects as identified in 
the report 

Summary

This report identifies funding for provision to meet local need and to enhance the local 
area.

Statutory Powers

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority’s general power of 
competence, including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or 
present in its area

13

Agenda Item 7



Eastleigh Borough Council

Strategic Implications 

1. The proposals will help to address some of the objectives in the Corporate 
Plan. For example, Park Sport and the youth projects at Hedge End, Cutbush 
Lane and Boorley Park will help to enhance young people’s health and well-
being by targeting deprivation, improving physical health, social skills and 
mental health. The Young People’s Wellbeing Service contributes to the same 
outcomes. The Senior Sports Development Officer’s work will have an impact 
on all ages through different activities such as Healthwalks, GP referrals and 
Park Sport. Additional car parking schemes help to prevent damage to verges 
and include planting schemes to enable a green borough. The Woodhouse 
Lane projects will create opportunities for physical activity, improved green 
space and landscaping.

Park Sport

2. Eastleigh Borough Council’s Park Sport scheme celebrated its 15th 
anniversary last summer. The summer activities programme for 8-16 year olds 
in Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB) consisted of Boxercise at the 
Ageas Bowl, cycling at Botley Recreation Ground and swimming at Wildern 
Leisure Centre. Swimming proved extremely popular with an average of 31 
youngsters attending the sessions. Unfortunately the skate jam at Woodhouse 
Lane was cancelled due to bad weather. However Friday Night Football at 
Botley continued throughout the summer with an average of 24 people per 
session which is still the best attended scheme in the Borough. 

3. The intention is to hold another Park Sport scheme this summer. Once again 
the local area committees are being asked for sponsorship along with local 
companies and housing associations. The town and parish councils will also 
be asked to support the scheme, either financially or by offering facilities in 
kind.

4. This Committee has traditionally allocated £2,000 towards Park Sport from its 
revenue budget and the same amount is now requested for approval.

Senior Sports Development Officer

5. The Council’s Head of Health and Wellbeing has advised that following the 
departure of the Council’s Senior Sports Development Officer that this position 
will be a full time role of 37 hours which is an increase of 7 hours per week. 

6. Longer term this increase will be funded corporately or via external funding 
but for the next 2 financial years, there is a gap of £10,000. The Eastleigh 
Local Area Committee has agreed to fund half of this figure and this 
Committee has been asked to contribute the same amount.

7. The post holder will oversee specific projects in Hedge End, West End and 
Botley in return for this investment. Initial project ideas include a review of 
access to leisure facilities and activities within HEWEB; increased partnership 
working to develop the community offer at the Ageas Bowl; input into the 

14



Eastleigh Borough Council

masterplan for Itchen Valley Country Park and the development of leisure 
programmes at Boorley Park. 

8. Therefore Councillors are requested to approve the allocation of £5,000 from 
the Committee’s reserves for the financial years 2020/21 and 2021/22.

Young People’s Wellbeing Service

9. Currently the Young People’s Wellbeing Service (YPWS) incorporates the 
Teenage Drop-In Centre (TADIC) at Hedge End Medical Centre and Eastleigh 
Youth Counselling. Unfortunately TADIC at Bursledon closed in November 
due to a lack of clinical nurses. Young people from this area have now been 
directed to TADIC at Hedge End.

10. The YPWS is a charity and it provides a confidential and accessible service 
and an opportunity to discuss all aspects of daily living. The service also gives 
young people the knowledge to empower them to make informed choices 
regarding their own physical, emotional and mental health.

11. The charity is governed by a Board of Trustees and the service is provided by 
a team of health specialists including doctors, sexual health nurses and 
counsellors who are supported by an administration team. 

12. A rolling 12 month service level agreement between Eastleigh Borough 
Council, Hedge End Town Council and the YPWS sets out the agreed service 
level in return for funding of £11,000. This is equally split between the 2 
councils.

13. A report detailing usage of the service during April – September 2019 has 
been provided as part of the service level agreement. This has revealed that 
62% of those using TADIC reside in Hedge End with a further 13% coming 
from West End and Botley. It will be interesting to see how these percentages 
are affected by the closure of TADIC in Bursledon.

14. The majority of clients are female, aged 17 – 19 which is a slight increase in 
age based on last year’s report.

15. Hedge End Town Council’s Clerk has indicated that the Town Council is 
minded to support a further 12 month’s funding, i.e., £5,500 from April 2020 to 
March 2021. It is therefore recommended that this Committee matches this 
funding arrangement but that a formal review is undertaken by all parties 
named in the service level agreement in October 2020. 

Ratcliffe Road and Midlands Estate – car parking 
improvements

16. As previously reported to this Committee, the Ratcliffe Road car parking 
project was completed last autumn. It has been well received by residents.

17. Progress on the Midlands Estate project has been hindered by design issues 
and the discovery of a pipe below the site. Subsequently it has been 

15



Eastleigh Borough Council

determined by the Council’s Senior Engineer that this pipe is sufficiently deep 
enough that it will not affect the proposed works.

18. The commencement of work on the adjacent Vivid development has 
exacerbated the parking issues in this corner of the Midlands Estate. This was 
brought to the attention of the Committee by residents at the January meeting. 

19. Due to an uncompetitive market for this type of work, tenders for both projects 
have been considerably over budget. Design changes and planning 
requirements for the inclusion of tree planting have meant that further 
expense has been incurred. In order to complete the Midlands Estate project, 
it is requested that additional expenditure of up to £16,500 is approved. This 
can be afforded from the Committee’s reserves as previously allocated funds 
for the Assistant Local Area Manager’s secondment are no longer required 
and it is recommended that these funds are reallocated to this project.

Youth projects 

20. In September 2019, this Committee received a report regarding funding for 
youth provision. This involved the redistribution of the funding for the HEWEB 
Youth Leader position based on consultation with key local stakeholders. This 
approach was also agreed by the HEWEB Youth Partnership.

21. Based on this approach, several projects have now been identified for the 
residual funding of £6,500.

22. The Friday Night Project based at the Community Hub in Hedge End provides 
an invaluable service for youngsters with additional needs. Over half of the 
attendees live in the HEWEB area. The review of youth provision across the 
HEWEB area revealed that this provision was not replicated anywhere else 
and that local area committee funding was therefore appropriate. 

23. The Cutbush Lane project in West End was established through National 
Lottery funding for 3 years. The Club attracts youngsters largely from the 
Townhill estate, one of the most deprived areas within HEWEB. This funding 
has now finished and therefore the main financial support is provided by West 
End Parish Council.

24. The community development officer at Boorley Park raised the issue of 
detached/outreach work for the new development at the last HEWEB Youth 
Partnership.  The development of a local community is essential and with the 
imminent opening of the community centre and Multi Use Games Area, it is 
felt that this is another valid project for the Committee to fund.

25. The Committee is requested to allocate £2,500 to the Friday Night Project and 
also to the Cutbush Lane Youth Club with £1,500 granted to Botley Parish 
Council for youth activities at Boorley Park.

16



Eastleigh Borough Council

Woodhouse Lane development – additional community 
facilities

26. Staff from Hampshire County Council and Eastleigh Borough Council have 
been working together to develop plans for a floodlit artificial sports pitch, 
grass pitches and an extension to the sports hall to provide additional 
changing rooms and a multi-purpose room at the Woodhouse Lane 
development site in Hedge End as reported at the January local area 
committee meeting.

27. As part of the Section 106 planning agreement for planning permission 
O/18/83634, it is now appropriate to seek formal approval from this Committee 
for the allocation of the following developer’s contributions:

OBLIGATION AMOUNT (£) + 
indexation

Project(s) Payment 
schedule

Community 
Infrastructure 
Contribution

1,166,735.15 Towards a 
community 
changing rooms, 
multi-purpose 
room and floodlit 
artificial sports 
pitch or alternative 
sports/community 
facilities if 
planning consent 
is not achieved for 
the above with 
improvements to 
Hedge End Town 
Centre; bins, 
benches and 
noticeboards in 
the HEWEB area 

On 
commencement 
of development

Public Open 
Space & Play 
Provision

1,507,379.28 Towards part of 
the cost of the 
floodlit artificial 
sports pitch, the 
grass pitches on 
site and the 
provision and 
maintenance of 
public open space 
in the HEWEB 
area

34% on 
commencement 
of residential 
development

33% 200th 
occupation

33% 300th 
occupation

Community 
Development 

83,255.56 To be allocated 
for work 

*25% on 
commencement 

17



Eastleigh Borough Council

Worker/Project 
Manager

associated with 
the Woodhouse 
Lane site and 
Winchester Street

of residential 
development

*25% 1st 
occupation

*25% 200th 
occupation

*25% 300th 
occupation

28. The Council is also in discussion with the developer (Hampshire County 
Council) about the Section 106 agreement for Winchester Street, Botley. A 
contribution towards the artificial sports pitch may be agreed. Also a 
compensatory figure for the lack of playing pitches at Boorley Gardens is 
being finalised.

Financial Implications

29. All of the recommendations for funding can be afforded from the Committee’s 
revenue and reserve budgets. The capital expenditure for Woodhouse Lane 
may require some front funding as the full cost of the projects is unknown 
currently and also some of the payments are dependent on the build out and 
occupation on site.

Risk Assessment 

30. There is a risk that if the community projects and schemes are not funded that 
they will be unable to take place leading to a failure to deliver aspects of the 
Corporate Plan and Area Action Plan. There is a risk that the developer’s 
contributions will not be forthcoming for Woodhouse Lane. However receipt of 
the front funded payment of £1,166,735.15 is imminent. Councillors should 
also note that planning permission has yet to be approved for the artificial 
sports pitch, grass pitches and the extension to the sports hall.

31. There is a risk to the committee that front funding of its own may be required, 
if and when, the projects progress as described in paragraph 29. Councillors 
will receive regular updates on the financial situation and payments received 
to keep them appraised.

Equality and Diversity Implications

32. The Equality Act is relevant to some of the decisions in this report because :  

 We have due regard to Equality issues as the Park Sport scheme 
contains a bespoke assessment and the annual report analyses 
accessibility and deprivation. The Young People’s Wellbeing Service is 
accessible by all and this is checked at the 6 monthly review in terms of 

18



Eastleigh Borough Council

assessing the statistical evidence. Both youth club sessions have their 
own equalities assessment and focus on accommodating those with 
additional needs and tackling social deprivation. The service level 
agreement for Woodhouse Lane will contain a section on equalities and 
accessibility.

 The car parking schemes conform to the latest guidance under the 
Equality Act. 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

33. The provision of activities in the local area reduces the need to travel and will 
help to reduce carbon footprints. For example Hedge End Rangers players 
and coaches meet at over 20 different venues, some of which are outside the 
Borough. By centralising this provision within Hedge End, those associated 
with the club will have to travel less. In addition the Park sport scheme 
includes cycling which should encourage young people and possibly their 
families to choose this form of transport.

34. The Council’s Biodiversity Officer is a key consultee for the development of 
Woodhouse Lane. Facilities will be built in line with environmental 
considerations and where possible biodiversity will be enhanced along with 
landscaping and drainage to prevent flooding. 

Conclusion

35. The recommended projects will provide future benefit to the local community.

JULIA BIRT
LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date: 07 February 2020
Contact Officer: Julia Birt 
Tel No: 02380 688437
e-mail: julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

Background Papers:
April – September 2019 The Teenage Drop-in Centre, Hedge End and Hamble
Park Sport report 2019 Eastleigh Borough Council

19



This page is intentionally left blank



HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday 2 March 2020 

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY YOUTH GRANTS 2019-20

Report of the Assistant Local Area Manager 

Recommendations

It is recommended that this Committee:  

(1) Endorses the recommendations of the Hedge End, West End and Botley
(HEWEB) Youth Council for HEWEB youth grants as shown in Appendix A;

  (2) Extends its thanks to members of the Youth Grants Panel; and

(3) Allocates £4,000 towards local youth grants to be awarded in 2020/21.

Summary

This report outlines the youth grants process including the involvement of the Hedge End, 
West End and Botley Youth Grants Panel in the decision making process. Councillors are 
invited to endorse the recommendations of this year’s Youth Grants Panel and to extend 
their thanks to these volunteers. £4,000 from the Committee’s Youth Initiatives budget has 
been allocated towards youth grants in past years and should be reserved again so that 
the Youth Grants Panel, with the support of the Assistant Local Area Manager, can be 
reconvened in 2021.

Statutory Powers

* Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of 
competence, including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or 
present in its area.

* Children’s Act 2004.

Strategic Implications 

1. This report seeks to address key objectives in the Corporate Plan, such as 
Green Borough, Healthy Communities and Prosperous Place and is in line with 

21

Agenda Item 8



Eastleigh Borough Council

the local first project which identify local need and local priorities. The 
allocation of grants to valued and effective local organisations is the aim of 
this report based on the local Youth Grants Panel’s recommendations. In 
particular, the grants will enable Healthier Lifestyles and Wellbeing for local 
young people through the provision of targeted activities and services.

Introduction

2. The HEWEB Youth Grants Panel is supported by the local area management 
team and youth leaders from West End Parish Council and Hedge End Town 
Council. Their role is to consider the annual youth grant applications.

3. Volunteers on the HEWEB Youth Panel spent their free time agreeing criteria, 
assessing grant application forms and prioritising awards so that their grant 
recommendations could be brought to this Committee for endorsement.

4. The recommendations of the Youth Grants Panel are shown in Appendix A.

5. Members are invited to endorse their recommendations. The grants will be 
presented at the HEWEB Youth Partnership’s Annual General Meeting on 31st 
March 2020.

Financial Implications

6. Provision has been made in this Committee’s revenue budget to meet the cost 
of the grants as shown in Appendix A.

7. It is also recommended that £4,000 is allocated in the 2020/21 revenue 
budget for youth grants.

Risk Assessment

8. The recommendations made by the Youth Grants Panel do not hold 
significant risks. All grant applications are subject to the completion of a 
detailed application and supporting documents including submission of 
financial details.

Equality and Diversity Implications

9. The HEWEB Youth Grants Panel has made specific efforts to ensure that 
equality and diversity implications were taken into account throughout its 
deliberations. Grant decisions have been made taking into account the key 
guidance of ‘Every Child Matters’ and the Children’s’ Act 2004.

10. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
relates to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, or 

22



Eastleigh Borough Council

fostering good relations between different people in the following ways: 
Increasing the capacity of voluntary and community organisations to provide 
services and opportunities for children and young people, including young 
carers, people with learning disabilities and older people.  The decision will 
help foster good relations between different groups by providing opportunities 
for all sections of the community, and specific opportunities for young and 
older generations to take part in activities together. A full Equality Impact 
Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out, because while there are some 
equalities impacts, it is not proportionate to carry out a full EIA.

11. Climate Change and Environmental Implications

The youth grants encourage and aim to change residents’ behaviour by 
supporting projects which incorporate green initiatives such as funding to 
install refillable water fountains to reduce litter and to promote reducing single 
use plastics. Along with funding towards a tent for a Guides group which 
introduces many benefits of being outside, such as engaging with nature, 
educating young people about the importance of looking after the environment 
and providing an alternative holiday option which has less of an impact on 
individuals’ carbon footprint.

Conclusion

12. Delegation of real decisions to our young people continues to be a successful 
and welcome initiative. The recommendations contained within this report 
assist with corporate priorities and the allocation of youth grants is part of the 
Hedge End, West End and Botley Youth Partnership’s development plan.

SIOBHAN STRAND 
ASSISTANT LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date: 06 February 2020
Contact Officer: Siobhan Strand 
Tel No: 02380 688428
e-mail: siobhan.strand@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: One

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

7 grant applications were received and are held on file for further inspection. 

23



This page is intentionally left blank



Organisation Project Name One off project (not previously funded by 
EBC), equipment or individual events? 

Meets EBC priorities (green borough, 
healthy communities, prosperous place)?

How many HEWEB 
residents will this 
benefit?

Amount 
Requested

Amount 
Awarded

West End Youth Projects Water Fountains The money will be spent on installing three 
refillable water fountains for users of the 
parks and play areas in west end. This will 
be used to refill their water bottles. The 
purpose of the stations will be to cut down 
on young people drinking sugary drinks, it 
will cut down on litter left in the area as 
well as promoting reducing single use 
plastics.

The main aim of the youth club is to 
ensure that young people are prepared to 
transition into adult life. We do this by 
developing their personal skills as well as 
giving them the opportunity to socialize. 
We also aim to promote healthy lifestyles. 
We do this through playing sports, healthy 
eating and cooking, and educating young 
people through informal learning. We 
have recently set up a recycling scheme 
which encourages young people to reduce 
waste and care more about their 
environment.

100 £500.00 £500.00

Performing Arts Company Summer show 
at the Berry 
Theatre

Towards the running costs of summer 
show at the Berry Theatre

Providing low cost entertainment 
including a pantomime at the Berry 
Theatre  Supported by local brownies and 
cubs.   Cabaret and Murder mystery at the 
Village Hall.    

35 £500.00 £250 as a one off 
only, due to 
grant towards 
running costs.

1st Hedge End Guides once in a life 
time trip to 
Adelboden in 
Switzerland 

August 2020. 30 members of the unit are 
going on a once in a life time trip to 
Adelboden in Switzerland the home of 
“Our Chalet” the very first Girlguiding 
International Centre established in 1932. 
As part of our visit to Our Chalet we would 
like to participate in a very special 
ceremony at the flagpole which includes 
the presentation of a traditional Our 
Chalet pin, and the raising of the flag, 
followed by a guided tour of Our Chalet. 
We are asking for £300 as this is the 
difference between the cost of a simple 
self-guided tour visited which without the 
funding is all we have the budget to do 
and the cost of the pin ceremony. The 
ceremony put much more meaning into 
the visit reaffirming everything Girlguiding 
stands for throughout the world. The visit 
to Our Chalet will further relationships in 
the International Community as we meet 
with other Guides from around the world.
We are doing fundraising for many aspects 
of the trip in order to keep the cost down 
and keep it inclusive by being affordable 
for all.

We want all girls across the UK to have the 
space and opportunities they need to 
thrive, grow and give back to their 
communities
Nationwide more than 400,000 girls 
already meet regularly as Rainbows, 
Brownies, Guides and Rangers. Together 
they learn skills, grow in confidence, make 
lifelong friendships, help their 
communities and have lots of fun. 
Guiding is so much more than an after 
school activity or just a way for girls to 
spend an evening. 

37 £300.00 £300.00

3rd West End Guides Equipment: Skandia Nimbus Protect 12 
person tent with a sewn-in groundsheet

We offer girls between the ages of 10 and 
14 the opportunity to take part in a variety 
of activities designed to give them fun, 
friendship and skills for life.  By giving 
them a safe, girl only space, they are free 
to be themselves and a place where they 
can talk openly about what affects their 
daily lives and get support from the other 
girls and adults which is beneficial for 
mental well-being.

8 £500.00 £300.00

25



Hedge End Town Council 
Youth Provision

Hedge End 
Town Council 
Youth Provision

Equipment: £150 for Bluetooth, karaoke 
Boombox as currently don’t have a music 
player in the youth club.
£100 for outdoor sports equipment to use 
outside club and in local parks- rounders, 
swingball, football, basketball, pump etc
£100 for arts and craft materials to run a 
variety of fun sessions
£100 to subsidise community trips 
£50 for interactive computer games like 
Wii dance 2019 and sports

This project will provide a safe and 
supportive environment for local young 
people to have fun and take part in 
exercise and healthy lifestyle activities. We 
will involve the young people in planning 
sessions appropriate for their needs 
covering a range of issues such as mental 
health, bullying and to develop social skills 
and confidence.  We will take the young 
people out in the local community to 
encourage them to use these resources 
independently. 

Prosperous Place: The project helps the 
young people to develop life and social 
skills which can be used to help them 
manage better in education or an 
employment setting in the future.  Youth 
Workers can support with exploring 
training options or job applications. The 
young people will be involved in all 
aspects of planning club sessions, trips and 
activities. 

50 £500.00 £500.00

Friday Night Project Friday Night 
Project

£250 to subsidise a residential experience 
to develop independent living skills to be 
researched and planned by the group as a 
learning activity in itself
£100 for workshop leader and resources to 
have someone in to run 3 music/ drama 
therapy workshops
£100 for cooking equipment and 
ingredients to run sessions like making 
meals on a budget, bake off. 
£50 to subsidise community trips to 
develop life skills

 This project supports the young people 
with their mental health and well being by 
providing a safe and supportive 
environment for them to have fun and 
develop their social skills. We involve the 
young people in planning sessions to meet 
their needs covering a range of issues such 
as anxiety, bullying, healthy eating and 
personal safety. The residential experience 
and trips help to develop self esteem and 
confidence by pushing them out of their 
comfort zone and seeing what they can 
achieve. 

Prosperous Place: The project helps the 
young people to develop life and social 
skills which can be used to help them 
manage better in education or an 
employment setting.  Youth Workers can 
support with exploring training options or 
job applications. The young people are 
involved in all aspects of planning club 
sessions, trips and activities. We run 
practical sessions around things like 
transport, budgeting and job searching to 
help them in the wider community. 

17 £500.00 £500.00

The D@rt Centre D@rt Youth 
Theatre

Annual Performance, grant for costume 
making/hire

Theatre engaging with youths from 4 - 13 
fully inclusive.

23 £100.00 £100.00

Total £2,900.00 £2,450.00

26



HEDGE END, WEST END & BOTLEY (HEWEB) 
LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE

Monday, 2nd March 2020

HEDGE END, WEST END & BOTLEY VARIOUS 
ROADS TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER (TRO)

Report of the Traffic Management Engineer

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Committee approves the proposals for: 
(1) Aspen Road;
(2) Oak Tree Gardens; 
(3) Ravenscroft;
(4) September Close;
(5) The Fox Gloves; 
(6) Ullswater Avenue;
(7)  Upper Northam Road;
(8) Wilderness Heights; and 
(9) Yardley Road.

Summary

A list of roads was presented to the Engineering Team from The Local Area Manager 
with a request to review, advertise and introduce waiting restrictions to improve road 
safety and reduce obstructive parking.

A number of representations were received following the introduction of the restrictions 
and this report summarises the responses received and recommends how to proceed.
Statutory Powers

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004.

Legal Agreements

Agency Agreement dated 30 March 2009 between Hampshire County Council and 
Eastleigh Borough Council

Strategic Implications

1. Creating an excellent environment for all, by removing obstructive 
and inconsiderate parking. 27

Agenda Item 9



Introduction

2. The Various Roads Review looks at parking issues which have been 
raised by residents and Councillors.  Councillors drew up a list of roads 
which were reported as having parking related issues.  These were 
reviewed and the roads which have been selected for parking restrictions 
are included in this report, and these are:

1. Aspen Close
2. Lower New Road
3. Oak Tree Gardens
4. Ravenscroft
5. September Close
6. The Foxgloves
7. Ullswater Avenue
8. Upper Northam Road
9. Wilderness Heights
10.Yardley Road

3. After advertising on the internet and in local newspapers, and consulting 
with residents and the wider community, we didn’t receive representations 
for all the roads advertised.  However, we did receive responses relating to 
proposals in the roads listed below:

1. Lower New Road
2. The Foxgloves
3. Ullswater Avenue
4. Upper Northam Road
5. Wilderness Heights
6. Yardley Road

4. Initial consultation was undertaken with the statutory consultees, including 
the Fire and emergency services and public transport operators, along with 
Borough and County Councilor’s and none of these have made any 
objections to the proposals. 

5. The formal consultation was advertised in the Hampshire Independent 
newspaper, on the Eastleigh Borough Council (EBC) website, the 
Hampshire County Council Public Notices Portal and on public notices 
placed throughout the affected areas on 25th October 2019, with a closing 
date for receipt of representations of 15th of November 201928



6. This report outlines comments received to proposals which would introduce 
on street parking restrictions, such as single and double yellow lines in the 
roads mentioned above within HEWEB area. 

7. This Committee needs to consider the comments received and the 
Engineers recommendations before making a balanced decision which will 
take into consideration the needs of resident’s, while striving to improve 
road safety and the further reduction of accidents, or indeed the likelihood of 
an accident occurring in the first instance and to approve amend or 
withdraw the Traffic Regulation Order.

Consultation Responses

8. Objections and Engineers comments to respondent’s representations are 
included within this report. 

9. Drawings outlining the proposals for each area. 

Consultation Results and information – The Foxgloves

1. Schedule of representations 

Representation Date Received Representors
Comments 

Engineers 
Comments

Supports 08/11/2019
Will improve 

access as are 
regularly blocked 

in

Proceed with 
proposals

2. Scheme proposals

29



Consultation Results and information – Lower New Road

1. Schedule of Representations

Representation Date 
Received

Representors
Comments 

Engineers 
Comments

supports with a 
suggestion 18/10/2019  it should be parking 

for residents only No further action

30



2. Scheme Proposals

Consultation Results and information – Ullswater Avenue

1. Schedule of representations

Representation Date 
Received

Representors
Comments 

Engineers 
Comments

Supports 18/10/2019
DYL not enough, would 
prefer 20 metres.  Main 
concern is speed and 

volume of traffic

Install double 
yellow lines and 

omit the changes 
to priority

objects 18/11/2019
Unreasonable, relies 
on parking near the 

house
No further action

query 19/10/2019 How will restrictions 
be enforced No further action

objects 26/10/2019 Will not deal with 
problem No further action

objects 26/10/2019

Needs a one-way 
system from north to 

south.  Permit 
Parking should be an 

option for a later 
date

No further action

query/objection 31/10/2019 rely on on-street 
parking No further action

31



Supports 18/10/2019
Guests would no longer 

be able to park in front of 
our garden hedge

Install double 
yellow lines and 

omit the changes 
to priority

Objects 18/10/2019
Might encourage vehicles 

to park there and 
obstruct our driveway

Install double 
yellow lines and 

omit the changes 
to priority

Supports 19/10/2019
Proposals are very 

welcome, however DYL 
need to extend up to Ivy 

Lane footpath

Install double 
yellow lines and 

omit the changes 
to priority

Objects 19/10/2019
DYL need to extend up to 
Ivy Lane footpath approx 

30 m up Ullswater Ave

Install double 
yellow lines and 

omit the changes 
to priority

Support 19/10/2019 Restrictions should be 
20m, not 10m

Install double 
yellow lines and 

omit the changes 
to priority

Support 19/10/2019
This is very much needed 
due to the chaos caused 

by the  cars and large 
vans

Install double 
yellow lines and 

omit the changes 
to priority

Supports 02/11/2019
As a resident of Ullswater 
Avenue I largely support 

this order

Install double 
yellow lines and 

omit the changes 
to priority

Objects with 
suggestions 05/11/2019 Objects to change of 

priority 

Install double 
yellow lines and 

omit the changes 
to priority

Objects to 
change of 
priorities

07/11/2019
Please reconsider this 
proposal and scrap the 

plan

Install double 
yellow lines and 

omit the changes 
to priority

Supports & would 
like to see 

extended further 
with removal of 
the change of 

priority

08/11/2019

I suggest  that you 
introduce no parking for 

at least 50 metres on both 
sides of the road on  

Ullswater Avenue

Install double 
yellow lines and 

omit the changes 
to priority

2. Scheme proposals

32



Consultation results and information – Upper Northam Road 33



1. Schedule of representations

Road Name
Name of 

Respondent
Representors

Comments 
Engineers 
Comments

Supports 18/10/2019
Clearing the road will only 
make this worse, suggest 
chicanes or speed camera

Install as proposed 
but monitor for 6 

months and if 
displacement causes 
issues which are of 

concern then look to 
remove problematic 

parking

Supports 18/10/2019 Thank you for long awaited 
improvement

Install as proposed 
but monitor for 6 

months and if 
displacement causes 
issues which are of 

concern then look to 
remove problematic 

parking

Objects 18/10/2019
Only concern would be 
speed of traffic, many 

people travel faster than 
30mph

Install as proposed 
but monitor for 6 

months and if 
displacement causes 
issues which are of 

concern then look to 
remove problematic 

parking

Objects 18/10/2019 Parked cars slow traffic 
down

Install as proposed 
but monitor for 6 

months and if 
displacement causes 
issues which are of 

concern then look to 
remove problematic 

parking

Objects  19/10/2019 Proposed restrictions would 
only move the problem

Install as proposed 
but monitor for 6 

months and if 
displacement causes 
issues which are of 

concern then look to 
remove problematic 

parking

Objects 20/10/2019 Will move the parking 
problem further up the road

Install as proposed 
but monitor for 6 

months and if 
displacement causes 
issues which are of 

concern then look to 
remove problematic 

parking

Objects 20/10/2019
Only a complete ban on 

parking on U Northam Road 
will do any good

Install as proposed 
but monitor for 6 

months and if 
displacement causes 
issues which are of 

concern then look to 34



remove problematic 
parking

Objects 21/10/2019
Tthese proposals will move 
the problem further up the 
road to the bungalows at 74-
88

Install as proposed 
but monitor for 6 

months and if 
displacement causes 
issues which are of 

concern then look to 
remove problematic 

parking

Objects 22/10/2019
These proposals will move 
the problem further up the 

road to the bungalows at 74-
88

Install as proposed 
but monitor for 6 

months and if 
displacement causes 
issues which are of 

concern then look to 
remove problematic 

parking

Supports 23/10/2019
Proposals will benefit 

residents of Upper Northam 
Rd

Install as proposed 
but monitor for 6 

months and if 
displacement causes 
issues which are of 

concern then look to 
remove problematic 

parking

Supports 30/10/2019
Support waiting restrictions, 

but request other traffic 
calming measure

Install as proposed 
but monitor for 6 

months and if 
displacement causes 
issues which are of 

concern then look to 
remove problematic 

parking

Supports 30/10/2019 Pleased that DYL to be 
introduced

Install as proposed 
but monitor for 6 

months and if 
displacement causes 
issues which are of 

concern then look to 
remove problematic 

parking

Supports 01/11/2019 100% supports

Install as proposed 
but monitor for 6 

months and if 
displacement causes 
issues which are of 

concern then look to 
remove problematic 

parking

35



2. Scheme proposals

36



Consultation results and information – Wildnerness Heights

1. Schedule of representations

Representation Date Received Representors
Comments 

Engineers 
Comments

Supports 18/10/2019
Problems 

getting out of 
drive when cars 
parked opposite

Proceed with 
proposals

Query 19/10/2019
Requests 10 m 
DYL either side 

of driveway
Proceed with 

proposals

Supports 21/10/2019

Restrictions 
don't address 

the most 
dangerous 

parking issue in 
the road

Proceed with 
proposals

Supports 23/10/2019
Registers 

support for all 
the proposals

Proceed with 
proposals

Supports with 
suggestions 01/11/19

Would like the 
restrictions to 
extend further

Proceed with 
proposals

Supports with 
suggestions 02/11/2019

I was delighted 
to receive your 
letter regarding 
your proposals 
for Wilderness 

Heights

Proceed with 
proposals

Supports with 
suggestions 02/11/2019

Would like the 
restrictions to 
extend further

Proceed with 
proposals

Supports 08/11/2019

Fully supports 
proposals but 
would like the 
restrictions to 
extend further 

Proceed with 
proposals

Supports with 
suggestions 12/11/2019

Would like the 
restrictions to 
extend further  

Proceed with 
proposals

37



2. Scheme proposals

38



Consultation results and information – Yardley Road

1. Schedule of representations

Representation Date 
Received

Representors
Comments 

Engineers 
Comments

Objects 20/10/2019
Will take away valuable 
and flexible spaces for 

Residents/Visitors 
Proceed with 

proposals

Objects 21/10/2019
Will take away valuable 
and flexible spaces for 

Residents/Visitors
Proceed with 

proposals

Objects 06/11//2019
Will take away valuable 
and flexible spaces for 

Residents/Visitors
Proceed with 

proposals

2. Scheme proposals

39



Consultation results and information – September Close

1. Schedule of representations  
No representations were received

2. Scheme Proposals

Consultation results and information – Aspen Close

1. Schedule of representations  
No representations were received

2. Scheme Proposals40



Consultation results and information – Ravenscroft Way

1. Schedule of representations
No representations were received

2. Scheme Proposals

41



Consultation results and information – Oak Tree Gardens

3. Schedule of representations
No representations were received

4. Scheme Proposals

Financial Implications

10. The cost of the TRO and associated signs and road markings will be funded 
through the £100k area wide traffic TRO budget, at a cost of approximately £9000.

Risk Assessment

11. If a decision was not made to make the order the likelihood of an accident 
occurring could increase, and with more and more vehicles on the roads each year 
it’s important to tackle inconsiderate parking which causes congestion and road 
traffic hazards.  These can obstruct and prevent traffic from entering a road; this 
could be life threatening if one of the emergency services were to be called to an 
accident or incident whereby every second counts.  

Equality Impact Assessment
 

12. Measures have a minor positive impact on equality but insufficient to warrant a full 
EIA

42



Climate Change and Environmental Implications

13. These measures help to lower Greenhouse Gas/CO2 by reducing the likelihood of 
congestion and encourage parents to walk to school and leave the car at home.  
This will improve bus journey times and improve the punctuality of the bus service, 
which in turn will help make the service a viable alternative to private transport.

Conclusion

14. The Traffic Regulation Order to introduce waiting restrictions in the various 
roads which have been listed and detailed in this report has received both 
objections and expressions of support.

15. This report takes into consideration all of the representations received and 
recommends that the committee approve the proposals for:

 Oak Tree Gardens
 Ravenscroft
 September Close
 The Foxgloves
 Ullswater Avenue
 Upper Northam Road
 Wilderness Heights
 Aspen Close
 Yardley Road

16. This report takes into consideration all of the representations received and 
recommends that the committee approve the withdrawal of  the proposals and 
take no further action for Lower New Road.

           BEN MURPHY 
  TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT 

ENGINEER

Date: 3rd February 2020
Contact Officer: Ben Murphy
Tel No: 02380 688373
e-mail: ben.murphy@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 0

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 

43

mailto:ben.murphy@eastleigh.gov.uk


extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

None.

Eastleigh Borough Council

44



HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday 2 March 2020 

 

CHELTENHAM GARDENS, HEDGE END - EXPERIMENTAL TRAFFIC 
REGULATION ORDER

Report of the Traffic Management Engineer

Recommendations

It is recommended that  

(1) the Committee delegates authority to the Head of Legal Services to make a 
permanent Traffic Regulation Order in Cheltenham Gardens, Hedge End.  This 
order would have the effect of replicating on a permanent basis the effects of 
the current Experimental Traffic Order, with the following amendments: 

(a) the removal of the “no waiting Monday to Friday 2 - 3pm” restriction from 
the scheme

(b) the removal of “no waiting Monday to Friday 10 - 11am & 2 - 3pm” restriction 
from the marked parking bays and layby outside Cranleigh House, and the 
marked parking bays adjacent to No 52 Cheltenham Gardens, pending a 
possible further scheme to propose time limited parking  (e.g. one or two 
hours Monday to Friday 8am – 6pm) on these parking places.

(c) The removal of the “no waiting Monday to Friday 10-11am and 2 - 3pm” 
restriction from outside Nos 42-44 Cheltenham Gardens

(d) The replacement of “no waiting at any time” restrictions to “no waiting 
Monday to Friday 10-11am within Cheltenham Gardens, with the exception 
of “no waiting at any time” restrictions at the junction of Cheltenham 
Gardens and Maunsell Way, which should remain in place.

Summary

Waiting restrictions were introduced on an experimental basis in Cheltenham Gardens on 
24 September 2018. A number of representations were received following the introduction 
of the restrictions. This report summarises the responses received and recommends how 
to proceed

45

Agenda Item 10



Eastleigh Borough Council

Statutory Powers

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004. 

Legal Agreements

Agency Agreement dated 10 September 2019 between Hampshire County Council and 
Eastleigh Borough Council

Strategic Implications 

1. Creating an Excellent Environment for all, by removing obstructive and 
inconsiderate parking attributed to users of Hedge End railway station.

Introduction

2. Cheltenham Gardens is a residential cul-de-sac off Maunsell Way in Hedge 
End, serving approximately 100 dwellings.  It is close to Hedge End Railway 
Station, and in recent years a number of commuters have been parking in 
Cheltenham Gardens during the working day.  Complaints have been 
received that much of the parking attributed to commuters has been 
inconsiderate and obstructive to larger vehicles such as refuse collection 
vehicles.  Residents requested that the Council introduce waiting restrictions 
to prevent obstructive and inconsiderate parking.  Waiting restrictions were 
proposed in 2015, and again early in 2018, however both of these schemes 
resulted in objections and were not progressed.  The HEWEB committee 
subsequently resolved at its meeting on 23 July 2018 to introduce a new 
scheme of waiting restrictions on an experimental basis, and to review that 
scheme after 6 months.  A drawing showing the experimental restrictions can 
be found in Appendix 1.

The consultation process

3. Initial consultation was undertaken with the statutory consultees, including the 
emergency services and public transport operators, along with Borough and 
County Councillors. None of these have made any objection to the proposals. 

4. The formal consultation was advertised in the Hampshire Independent 
newspaper, on the Eastleigh Borough Council (EBC) website, the Hampshire 
County Council Public Notices Portal and on public notices placed throughout 
the affected areas on 14 September 2018, with a closing date for receipt of 
representations of 14 March 2019.

5. Representations were received from eight residents, four of whom are in 
favour of the scheme.  A further objection was received almost three months 
after the closing date for receipt of responses.  The objections and Engineer’s 
responses are detailed below:

46



Objection Engineer’s response

6 One resident is in favour of the restrictions, but is 
unhappy that displaced vehicles now prevent friends 
and family parking near his house.  He requests a 
permit scheme and further extensions to the single 
yellow lines.

Parking permit schemes are aimed at areas where the 
majority of residents have no offroad parking and 
where they frequently have difficulty in parking 
close to their homes, owing to on-street parking 
places being occupied by non-residents.  All the 
properties in Cheltenham Gardens are provided 
with off-road parking for at least one vehicle, the 
majority have two or more off road spaces.  A 
permit scheme would therefore cater largely for 
residents’ second or subsequent vehicles, and for 
visitors.  Hampshire County Council (the highway 
authority) has a policy that permit parking schemes 
should be self-funding; such a scheme in 
Cheltenham Gardens is unlikely to be viable.  

Further extensions to waiting restrictions are likely to 
simply displace parked vehicles further afield.  
Residents can apply for an access protection 
marking to be installed if they find that vehicles 
regularly obstruct their dropped kerb access.

47



Eastleigh Borough Council

7 Another resident objects to the inconsistency of 
installing single rather than double yellow lines on the 
winding sections of Cheltenham Gardens, where it 
would have most impact on access, and of installing 
single yellow lines in parking bays, because this does 
not cause obstruction. 

The parking bays remain largely unused, but 
inconsiderate parking still occurs on the carriageway, 
making access more difficult.  If the charges were 
removed from the railway station car park, the 
commuters would park there.

The introduction of “No waiting at any time” 
restrictions could be seen as a disproportionate 
response to an issue relating to parking by 
commuters only during the working day.  The 
recommendation is therefore to replace the “no 
waiting at any time” restrictions with a “No waiting 
Monday to Friday 10-11am” restriction, with the 
exception of the junction of Cheltenham Gardens 
and Maunsell Way, where the “No waiting at any 
time” restriction would remain, since Maunsell Way 
as a distributor road is designed for higher traffic 
flows and speeds.  

Cheltenham Gardens, along with the other 
residential roads on this estate, was designed with 
curves and culs-de-sac to maintain low vehicle 
flows and speeds.  

A further recommendation is to remove the waiting 
restrictions from designated parking places, since 
parking here does not cause obstruction or danger.  
Consideration could be given to introducing a time 
limit in these parking places, in order to allow for 
short term visitors to Cheltenham Gardens.  
However, this is outside the scope of the current 
considerations. 

There are no current plans to remove the charge for 
parking in Hedge End station car park, and this 
would in any case be outside the scope of this 
report.

48



Eastleigh Borough Council

Unfortunately, the extent of the commuter parking issue 
has not been made clear; there appear to have been no 
surveys carried out to provide evidence for the extent of 
the issue and on which proportionate solutions could have 
been proposed.  On anecdotal evidence, it appears that 
whilst the available spaces in the cul-de-sac closest to the 
railway station have generally been fully occupied during 
the working day, there have been kerbside spaces 
available elsewhere in Cheltenham Gardens.  Moreover, 
much of the kerbside space in Cheltenham Gardens is 
generally not required by residents or their visitors during 
the working day.  

It is therefore recommended that, in addition to the 
recommendations detailed in paragraph 7, that the “no 
waiting Monday to Friday 10-11am and 2 - 3pm” restriction 
outside Nos 42 and 44 Cheltenham Gardens be removed, 
which would allow parking on a “first come, first served” 
basis.  It is hoped that this would assist in resolving some 
of the objector’s difficulties.

8 Another resident objects on the grounds that the 
original proposal was for “no waiting” restrictions to 
apply only for 1 hour during the daytime Monday to 
Friday.  The restrictions are now for 1 hour in the 
morning and 1 hour in the afternoon.  This is doubly 
inconvenient for residents and ignores the objections 
to the original plan.  

The assumption is that there is adequate off-road 
parking for residents, but some residents rely on the 
kerbside to park second or additional vehicles which 

Experience elsewhere has shown that a “no 
waiting” restriction for an hour during the working 
day has the effect of deterring the majority of non-
resident parking in the vicinity of railway stations; it 
is therefore recommended that the single yellow 
line restriction is amended to remove the afternoon 
“no waiting” restriction, leaving the restriction as “no 
waiting Monday to Friday 10-11am”.  This would be 
consistent with the treatment of other nearby roads 
in the vicinity of Hedge End railway station 

49



Eastleigh Borough Council

can be during the working day as well as overnight, 
and for longer periods when they are on holiday.  

The restrictions are a serious inconvenience to 
weekday visitors, who will feel unable to visit or 
obliged to move their car during the time of the 
restriction.  

The only response to residents’ objections were to 
provide access protection markings “to enable 
residents to park across their driveway”.  In the 
majority of cases, this would mean obstructing the 
neighbour’s access, since the driveways are not wide 
enough to accommodate the length of a car.  In other 
cases the objections are noted, but no reasonable 
solution is offered.  

If parking permits are to be offered, residents must be 
made aware, so that the cost of permits can be 
considered in the context of their objection or support 
for the waiting restrictions.  Restrictions previously 
imposed on roads in the immediate vicinity of the 
railway station have had the effect of moving the 
perceived problem of commuter parking to 
Cheltenham Gardens, although it has not been a 
major issue here.  Imposing restrictions on 
Cheltenham Gardens will shift the commuter parking 
further afield.  The unrestricted parking bays are 
extremely limited and will only encourage use by 
commuters.  The restrictions will have a negative 
impact on property prices.

The Traffic Signs Manual Chapter 5 instructs that 
an access protection marking may be laid on part of 
the carriageway which should be kept clear of 
parked vehicles.  Residents who choose regularly 
to park across their driveway on the marking risk 
bringing it into disrepute and risk its effectiveness 
elsewhere.  The presence of a dropped kerb is 
normally sufficient to inform road users of the 
presence of an access to off-road parking.  

Paragraph 6 explains why a permit parking scheme 
is not recommended in this situation

50



Eastleigh Borough Council

9 Another resident complains that there have been 
many near misses and an accident due to commuters 
rushing to catch their trains. Residents are unable to 
park outside their own property, more cars are parking 
in Cheltenham Gardens to save parking fees.  

Nothing has been done about fake yellow lines at the 
end of Cheltenham Gardens by the pathway to 
the station. The resident requests single yellow 
lines in all parking bays or issue permits to 
residents only 

The design of Cheltenham Gardens encourages 
low traffic speeds, and we are not aware of any 
injury accidents at the location.  It is a driver’s 
responsibility to drive in a manner appropriate for 
the environment and conditions.  

The road has been inspected following the 
resident’s comment about “fake yellow lines”; all the 
yellow lines in Cheltenham Gardens have been 
correctly installed by EBC’s contractor.  Introduction 
of further waiting restrictions is unlikely to be of 
benefit to either residents or commuters.  

Paragraph 6 explains why a permit parking scheme is not 
recommended in this situation

10 Another resident objected because cars now park on 
the opposite side of the road to where they did prior to 
the restrictions being introduced.  This means cars 
are coming from three directions on the same side of 
the road.  Parking and safety were better before the 
restrictions were implemented.  (The committee 
should note that this representation was received 
almost 3 months after the closing date for receipt of 
representations).

There are waiting restrictions on all the cul-de-sac 
junctions within Cheltenham Gardens, which should 
provide sufficient visibility for road users to see 
oncoming traffic and give way if necessary, given 
the low traffic speeds.  Cheltenham Gardens has an 
excellent safety record with no recorded injury 
accidents in the last 20 years.

51



11. Four other residents have expressed support for the restrictions.

12. The Committee needs to consider the comments received, before making a 
decision 

* either to make the experimental Order permanent in its current form; or

* to introduce a new permanent TRO, the effect of which will be to make the 
experimental restrictions permanent with the recommended amendments; or 

* to withdraw the experimental Order and allowing it to lapse on 24 March 
2020.

13. A drawing showing the existing experimental restrictions is in Appendix 1, and 
a drawing showing the recommended amendments are in Appendix 2.

The Experimental Order will expire on 24 March 2020 if a decision is not 
made to confirm in its current form.  Allowing the Order to lapse would require 
the waiting restrictions to be removed from the roads.  Any new proposals 
would require a new Traffic Regulation Order to be advertised, which would 
incur additional costs in terms of staff time, advertisement expenses and road 
markings that were not included in the original estimate for the work.  If this 
option is chosen, there would be no restrictions in place from 24 March until 
such time as the new TRO comes into effect.  Requests for major changes 
would be better addressed as a possible future scheme.  

Financial Implications

14. The cost of a new permanent TRO and associated signs and road markings 
are funded through the Hampshire County Council Highways Agency budget; 
the estimated cost is £3,000.  The advertisement will cost approximately  
£150; the cost of amending the signing and road marking will cost 
approximately £2,000.  The remainder is made up of officer time 

15. The experimental TRO will expire on 24 March 2020 if a decision is not made 
either to make it permanent, or withdraw it.  Withdrawing the Order or allowing 
it to lapse would require the waiting restrictions to be removed from the roads.  
Any new proposals would then require a new Traffic Regulation Order to be 
advertised, which would incur additional costs in terms of staff time, 
advertisement expenses and road markings that were not included in the 
original estimate for the work.  Requests for major changes would be better 
addressed as a possible future scheme.  

Risk Assessment

16. If a decision regarding the outcome of the TRO is not made, the TRO will 
lapse and the waiting restrictions would need to be removed from Cheltenham 
Gardens. This would be a costly exercise, and is likely to be unacceptable to 
some residents, because the previous issues with obstructive and 

52



Eastleigh Borough Council

inconsiderate parking would be likely to recur.  Making a new experimental 
Order would be liable to a Legal challenge because there would be no valid 
reason for the experiment.

Equality and Diversity Implications

17. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision and an Equality Impact 
Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out and attached as Appendix 3 to the 
report.  In summary the EqIA shows that:

  The waiting restrictions will assist in improving access for pedestrians, 
including wheelchair users and pushchairs.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

18. The proposals would not increase Greenhouse Gas/CO2, or damage ecology 
or the environment.  The scheme may assist in encouraging residents of 
Hedge End to walk or cycle to Hedge End railway station.

Conclusion

19. The experimental Traffic Regulation Order to introduce waiting restrictions in 
Cheltenham Gardens received both objections and expressions of support.

20. This report takes these into account and makes a recommendation to make 
amendments  to reduce the impact of some of the restrictions.  This would 
address some of the objections, whilst maintaining access and preventing 
obstructive parking.

BARBARA THOMAS
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ENGINEER

Date: 3 February 2020
Contact Officer: Barbara Thomas
Tel No: x 8231
e-mail: barbara.thomas@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 3

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

 None.

53



This page is intentionally left blank



55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



W
ard Bdy

Car Park

ETL

CR

CS

FB

LB

CHELTENHAM GARDENS

C
H

EL
T

EN
H

A
M

 G
A

R
D

EN
S

153

91

29
27

21

1 to
 12

89

133

139

131

121

129

52

1 
to

 8

137

145

Cranleigh

8

10

14

House

16

6059

42

111

30

24

7

13

19

9

2

11

97

Regent

87

House

141

147

39

77

40

99

50

93

85

41

1

43

31

69

59

71

63

75

61

3

7

45
46

5556

5411

9

El Sub Sta

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

Proposed amended waiting restrictions
Cheltenham Gardens, Hedge End

31/12/2019

1 : 1250

BT



© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2019

1 of 1

MAUNSELL WAY

MARLBOROUGH 

GARDENS

KEY

"No waiting at any time" restrictions
to remain

"No waiting at any time" restrictions
to change to "No waiting Mon -Fri
10-11am" restrictions

"No waiting Mon-Fri 10-11 am & 2-3pm"
restrictions to be removed

"No waiting Mon-Fri 10-11am & 2-3pm"
restrictions to change to 
"No waiting Mon-Fri 10-11am" restrictions

57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

Title of EqIA:

The Borough of Eastleigh (Cheltenham Gardens, Hedge 
End) 

Experimental Order 2018

Brief description of  
the Proposal:

Proposal is to make permanent the Traffic Order, with some 
amendments, to maintain the improved access to 
Cheltenham Gardens, whilst giving more flexibility for road 
users to park at the kerbside where it does not cause 
obstruction.

Assessment:

For all of categories below please consider:
1. Does this proposal eliminate unlawful discrimination?
2. Does this proposal advance equality of opportunity between people who share 

a protected characteristic and those who do not share it? 
3. Does this proposal foster good relations between people who share a 

protected characteristic and those who do not share it?

Statutory Considerations: Please highlight what impact could there be on people 
with protected characteristics. 

Age: None

Disability: Improving access for wheelchairs and pushchairs by 
regulating kerbside parking, and keeping informal 
pedestrian crossing points clear of parked vehicles

Gender: None

Gender reassignment: None

59



Pregnancy and 
Maternity:

None

Race: None

Religion or belief: None

Sexual Orientation: None

Marriage and civil 
partnership:

None

Non statutory considerations: Please highlight what impact could there be on 
people experiencing social deprivation.

Social deprivation: None

What engagement or 
consultation has been 
carried out?

statutory public notice in local press and on street

What could reduce 
any adverse impact on 
these groups?

N/A

Action Plan 

Activity Outcome Timeframe Person responsible

60



Lead Officer: Barbara Thomas 

Manager:

Corporate Director:

Date completed: 31 December 2019

61



This page is intentionally left blank



HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday, 2 March 2020 

BERRYWOOD SCHOOL, HEDGE END - TRAFFIC STUDY 

Report of the Traffic Management Engineer

Recommendations

It is recommended that  the Committee approves:

(1) A Traffic Regulation Order, the effect of which would be to introduce a 
“School Keep Clear” zigzag on Maunsell Way at the entrance to the infant 
department, and remove waiting restrictions on part of Locke Road in order to 
accommodate some of the demand for kerbside parking associated with the 
school;

(2) That consideration be given to the installation of Bus Stop clearways at all the 
bus stops on Locke Road, Maunsell Way and Drummond Road;

(3) That consideration be given to the installation of bus shelters and Kassel 
kerbs at the bus stops on Locke Road;

(4) The Traffic Management Engineer approaches Hampshire County Council 
(HCC) /Highways England (HE) to request them to consider:

a) The installation of Pedestrian guard railing outside the pedestrian 
access to the junior department.  

b) Replacement of all “No stopping on entrance markings” signs
c) A review of locations of “School” and “Patrol” warning signs, removal 

of redundant signs and posts and replacement of “Patrol” 
supplementary plates with “School” supplementary plates at locations 
where a School Crossing patrol no longer operates

d) A review of funding for “Bikeability” training, so all pupils who request 
training can receive it.

e) Refreshment of all worn-out markings for waiting and stopping 
restrictions

 

Summary

63

Agenda Item 11



Eastleigh Borough Council

Concerns have been raised by Councillors about road safety, traffic congestion and 
parking in the vicinity of Berrywood Primary School, Hedge End.  This report examines the 
issues raised and recommends actions to reduce or prevent recurrence of the problems.

Statutory Powers

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004. 

Legal Agreement

Agency Agreement dated 10 September 2019 between Hampshire County Council and 
Eastleigh Borough Council

Strategic Implications 

1. This report relates to the Corporate Plan 2015-2025 objectives of ‘Creating an 
excellent environment for all’ and “enabling healthier lifestyles / wellbeing”, by 
removing and obstructive parking, by reducing congestion, by improving road 
safety, by encouraging sustainable travel and by contributing towards 
improved air quality.

Introduction

2. Berrywood School is a primary school catering for up to 640 pupils from 4 to 
11 years old.  The catchment area extends across Grange Park residential 
estate in Hedge End, and most pupils live less than a mile from the school.  
The school is situated in Maunsell Way, a distributor road serving the Grange 
Park estate

Background

3. The main entrance to the school is on Maunsell Way; there is a rear access 
on Locke Road which is a minor road leading to five residential streets.  In the 
vicinity of the school, Maunsell Way is approximately 6.5 metres wide, and is 
a restricted road (30mph by virtue of street lighting).  There is a series of kerb 
buildouts along the part of Maunsell Way outside the school which 
encourages lower speeds by narrowing the carriageway, and also provides 
dedicated crossing points.  There are footways on both sides of all the 
distributor roads in the vicinity of the school, and a network of shared cycle 
and footpaths which lead to all parts of Grange Park estate.  There are 
multiple “children” warning signs accompanied by either “School” or “Patrol” 
supplementary plates and wigwags (flashing amber lights when school 
crossing patrol is operating) on Maunsell Way, Drummond Road and Locke 
Road

4. There is a “Park & Stride” site at the Drummond Community Centre on 
Drummond Road, approximately a third of a mile away.  School crossing 
patrols (SCPs) operate on Drummond Road close to its junction with Maunsell 

64



Eastleigh Borough Council

Way, on Maunsell Way outside the entrance to the infants department and on 
A334 Grange Road near its junction with Locke Road. 

5. There are “SCHOOL KEEP CLEAR” zig-zag markings outside the main 
entrance to the junior school and outside the back gate in Locke Road, which 
are in force at all times.  At the time of the site visits, the “no stopping” and “no 
waiting” restrictions appeared to be well observed.

6. The school has recently carried out a survey of travel modes.  Although most 
pupils live within a mile of the school, more than half are brought to school by 
car.  It is known that there are a lot of working parents; both the breakfast and 
after school clubs are full.  Many children are dropped off or collected by 
grandparents who live further away and therefore travel by car.

7. The school encourages pupils to travel by sustainable means, and many 
children do walk, scoot or cycle to school.  At the time of the site visits it was 
noted that the Park & Stride site is used by a few parents, but many more 
parents chose to park in nearby residential roads and on Maunsell Way when 
dropping off and collecting their children.  The school is intending to work on a 
road safety and school travel campaign, with the Years 5 and 6 pupils, and 
will be particularly targeting parents who drive their children to school.  The 
school has advised that they started on the STARS scheme (a national 
modeshift school travel award scheme) but felt that it did not have an impact 
on travel modes.

8. The school has occasionally received complaints about events outside of the 
normal school day (e.g. fetes); Residents are advised to check the school’s 
website for details of such events as the school does not send letters to 
residents ahead of every event outside normal school hours.  

9. The injury accident record for the roads surrounding the school is relatively 
good.  The injury accident database shows that there have been three injury 
accidents on Locke Road, Maunsell Way and Drummond Road during the five 
year period, 1 February 2014 to 31 January 2019, each resulting in one slight 
injury.

10. Photographs showing the locations described can be found in Appendix 2

65



Eastleigh Borough Council

11.

Issues 

12. The table below sets out the issue raised and sets out the engineer’s advice 
on options and the recommended actions. 

Issue Engineer’s comments

a) Complaints about 
inconsiderate parking by 
parents in Cudworth Mead and 
Walker Gardens.  

Waiting restrictions which apply at 
school start and finish times were 
introduced in Cudworth Mead within 
the last few years.  The junctions of 
both Walker Gardens and Cudworth 
Mead with Maunsell Way are 
protected with “no waiting at any 
time” restrictions.  Observations 
show that these restrictions are 
generally well-observed.  A number 
of parents appear to park in both of 
these roads at school start and 
finish time, but at the times of 

66



Eastleigh Borough Council

visiting no instances of obstruction 
were observed. 

13. b) The school has requested that 
some of the waiting restrictions 
are removed in  part of Locke 
Road east of Maunsell Way

14. This part of Locke Road leads to a 
“no through road” serving 
approximately 150 dwellings, and as 
such has low traffic flows and 
speeds.  A section of approximately 
40 metres of “no waiting at any time” 
restrictions in Locke Road could be 
removed, which could accommodate 
on-street parking away from 
residential properties which should 
reduce the demand for parking in 
residential streets.  This area could 
include a time limit to manage 
turnover of parked cars

c) Parents have been observed 
stopping next to the school 
crossing patrol (SCP) in 
Maunsell Way to drop off their 
children.

The restrictions at this point are “no 
waiting at any time”; it is lawful to 
drop off or pick up passengers on 
this restriction.  However, it is not 
advisable to do so where a SCP 
operates.  This location is very close 
to the entrance to the infant 
department, but there is no “School 
Keep Clear” zigzag at this point.  It 
is recommended to propose the 
installation of this marking and 
associated sign (this will require a 
TRO), which would make it unlawful 
to drop off or pick up passengers 
here

d) Parents have been observed 
opening the gates to the staff 
car park to drive in and drop off 
or pick up their children.

Parents are instructed not to use the 
staff car park.  Regrettably this 
instruction is ignored by a few. No 
doubt the school will continue to 
remind parents of their 
responsibilities. The school could 
consider locking the gates at 
start/finish times.  However, this 

67



Eastleigh Borough Council

could hamper access should it be 
required in an emergency

e) Enforcement staff verbally 
abused by parents 

Clearly this is an offence which can 
be reported to the police.  EBC’s 
civil enforcement officers have body-
worn video cameras which are used 
when patrolling schools.  The 
officers also patrol in pairs where 
there have previously been incidents 
of abuse

f) Cars parked on Maunsell Way 
north of its junction with 
Drummond Road restricts 
visibility of oncoming traffic and 
causes congestion

It would normally be preferable for 
the parking to be on the west side of 
the road, i.e. the outside of the 
bend, as this improves visibility of 
oncoming traffic.   However, moving 
the parked cars to the other side of 
Maunsell Way would require 
children to cross Maunsell Way to 
reach the school.  In the absence of 
an injury accident record attributed 
to parked cars, it is recommended 
not to introduce new waiting 
restrictions at this stage, but to 
continue to monitor the situation

g) Some junior pupils leaving the 
school by the main access 
cross Maunsell Way directly 
outside the gate and do not 
use the crossing points and the 
School crossing patrol

The school should encourage 
parents and pupils to make use of 
the SCP where appropriate.  
Otherwise they should be using the 
dedicated crossing points.  It is 
recommended that HCC is 
requested to install a short length of 
pedestrian guard railing outside the 
gate to encourage better road 
crossing behaviour

h) Cars parked on Locke Road 
and Drummond Road obstruct 
the bus stops

This parking is related to the “School 
run”, and causes congestion 
because there is a long line of 
parked vehicles without a passing 
place.  It is recommended to 
investigate whether funding is 
available to sign and mark “bus stop 
clearways” which would allow the 
service buses to access the stop, 
and also provide a passing place to 
relieve congestion.  It is also 
recommended to investigate 

68



Eastleigh Borough Council

whether funding is available to 
provide bus shelters and Kassel 
kerbs (raised kerbs providing level 
access to buses for 
wheelchair/pushchairs, photo in 
Appendix 2), in order to encourage 
more sustainable ways of travelling 
to school and to assist access to 
buses for those with limited mobility

i) Multiple “school”/”patrol”  
warning signs which do not 
reliably indicate the location of 
crossing points and the School 
Crossing Patrols, and thereby 
devalue the impact of the sign

It is recommended that HCC review 
locations of signs and remove 
redundant signs and posts, so those 
remaining better advise drivers on 
the location of the hazards

j) Bikeability training only 
available for 36 children per 
year; there are 90 children who 
would benefit from this training

Cycle training should be available 
for all children who require it.  It is 
recommended that this is requested 
from HCC  

Financial Implications

15. Amendment of waiting restrictions and introduction of “School Keep Clear” 
zig-zags).  This would be funded from the Hampshire County Council 
Highways Agency budget, as part of a “Various Roads” TRO for the HEWEB 
area, at a cost of approx. £4500 

16. Feasibility of funding Supply and installation of New bus stop clearway road 
markings and signs(approx. £500) 

17. Feasibility of funding the supply and installation of two new bus shelters and 
Kassel kerbs (approx. £20,000.) 

Risk Assessment

18. If the TRO is not progressed, it is likely that parents will continue to drop off 
children directly outside the infant department, putting other pedestrians and 
the School Crossing Patrol at risk due to reduced visibility for oncoming traffic.  
Cars will continue to park in residential streets, inconveniencing residents.

19. If the bus stop clearways are not installed, it is likely that parents will continue 
to park at bus stops, obstructing the path of passengers and contributing to 
congestion particularly on Locke Road.

69



Eastleigh Borough Council

Equality and Diversity Implications

20. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision and an Equality Impact 
Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out and attached as appendix 1 to the 
report.  In summary, the EqIA shows that the recommended actions would 
improve road safety for pedestrians, particularly school children.  These 
actions would also contribute towards improving access to bus services.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

21. Greenhouse gas/ CO2 emissions may be reduced by encouragement to travel 
to school by more sustainable methods than the private car.

Conclusion

22. The proposed actions would reduce the hazards to vulnerable road users, 
particularly schoolchildren and would improve road safety at the entrance to 
the junior department.  Congestion on Locke Road at peak times would be 
reduced, and passenger access to bus services improved.

BARBARA THOMAS*
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ENGINEER

Date: 6 February 2020
Contact Officer: Barbara Thomas
Tel No: x8231
e-mail: barbara.thomas@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

None

70



Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

Title of EqIA:

Berrywood Primary School, Hedge End
Traffic study 

Brief description of  
the Proposal:

Recommendations  that the committee approves work to 
amend waiting restrictions, and to introduce a new “School 
keep clear” sign and road marking.  It is also recommended 
to investigate the feasibility of funding bus stop clearway 
markings and signs, along with Bus shelters and Kassel 
Kerbs at two bus stops

Assessment:

For all of categories below please consider:
1. Does this proposal eliminate unlawful discrimination?
2. Does this proposal advance equality of opportunity between people who share 

a protected characteristic and those who do not share it? 
3. Does this proposal foster good relations between people who share a 

protected characteristic and those who do not share it?

Statutory Considerations: Please highlight what impact could there be on people 
with protected characteristics. 

Age: Improved access and safety for children and young 
people?

Disability: Improving access for pedestrians, including wheelchair 
users

Gender: None

Gender reassignment: None

71



Pregnancy and 
Maternity:

Possible benefit for pregnant women and mothers of 
infants/toddlers using this area

Race: None

Religion or belief: None

Sexual Orientation: None

Marriage and civil 
partnership:

None

Non statutory considerations: Please highlight what impact could there be on 
people experiencing social deprivation.

Social deprivation: Improving access to bus stops

What engagement or 
consultation has been 
carried out?

none

What could reduce 
any adverse impact on 
these groups?

N/A

Action Plan 

Activity Outcome Timeframe Person responsible

Consult on 
proposals with 
school including 
parents

72



Implement 
proposals

Lead Officer: Barbara Thomas 

Manager:

Corporate Director:

Date completed: 6 February 2020

73



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2.  Photographs

 

School Crossing Patrol point outside gate to Infant department on Maunsell Way

75



Example of Kassel kerbs at bus stop

76



77



This page is intentionally left blank



HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday, 2 March 2020 

TRAFFIC CONCERNS ST JAMES SCHOOL WEST END

Report of the Traffic Management Engineer

Recommendation(s)

It is recommended that the committee approves: 

(1) The progression of a TRO to introduce  “no waiting at any time” restrictions 
at the junction of Barrowfields Close with Moorgreen Road, and in Monarch 
Way opposite the access road to Nos 16 – 29 and in the turning head outside 
Nos 20 – 22; and 

(2) The Traffic Management Engineer approaches Hampshire County Council 
(HCC) /Highways England (HE) to request them to consider:

a) Installation of bollards or guard railing on the motorway bridge to 
prevent parking on footways

b) Installation of a bollard on the footway outside 61 Moorgreen Road to 
prevent cars driving along the footway to avoid having to give way at 
the kerb buildout

c) Replacement of the incorrect “School keep clear” zigzag markings and 
associated life-expired signs in Monarch Way

d) Removal or relocation of the kerb buildout at the junction of Monarch 
Way with Moorgreen Road

Summary

Concerns have been raised by Councillors about road safety, traffic congestion and 
parking in the vicinity of St James Primary School, West End.  This report examines the 
issues raised and recommends actions to reduce or prevent recurrence of the problems.

Statutory Powers

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004. 

Legal Agreements

Agency Agreement dated 10th September.2019 between Hampshire County Council and 
Eastleigh Borough Council

79

Agenda Item 12



Eastleigh Borough Council

Strategic Implications 

1. This report relates to the Corporate Plan 2015-2025 objective of ‘Creating an 
excellent environment for all’, by removing inconsiderate and obstructive 
parking, by reducing congestion, by improving road safety and by contributing 
towards improved air quality.

Introduction

St James School is a primary school catering for up to 630 pupils from 4 to 11 
years old, mainly residing in West End.  The school is situated in Monarch 
Way, a residential estate off Moorgreen Road which is a C class road linking 
West End with Horton Heath and Durley.  

Location Plan

80



Eastleigh Borough Council

Background 

2. In the vicinity of St James School, Moorgreen Road is approximately 6 
metres wide, is a restricted road (30mph by virtue of street lighting) and 
has a prohibition of HGVs over 7.5 tonnes (except for loading) 
restriction.  A scheme of traffic calming by means of a series of 
chicanes was introduced more than 10 years ago, and small “pinch 
points” were added some years later.  There is a footway on one side 
of Moorgreen Road from Monarch Way southwards for approximately 
450 yards to West End surgery, and on both sides of the road between 
the Southampton Arms PH and Monarch Way.  There are “School 
patrol” warning signs on Moorgreen Road on both approaches to 
Monarch Way.  There are “No waiting at any time” restrictions on 
Moorgreen Road and Monarch Way in the vicinity of the school.  

3. The injury accident database shows that that the roads in the vicinity of 
the school have a relatively low accident record, with three recorded 
injury accidents (two resulting in slight injuries and one resulting in 
serious injury) over the five year period 1 February 2014 to 31 January 
2019.

4. There are two “park and stride” sites for St James School.  One uses 
the Moorgreen Recreation Ground car park which can accommodate 
approximately 40 cars; users can walk along a footpath and a quiet 
residential road to reach the school.  The other uses the car park at the 
Southampton Arms PH.  This car park is small, unsurfaced and often 
full in the afternoons when there are functions at the pub; users have a 
short walk along Moorgreen Road to reach the school.  It was noted 
that no parents used this car park at the times of the site visits.

5. A school crossing patrol operates on Moorgreen Road adjacent to 
Monarch Way, and another School crossing patrol operates further 
south along Moorgreen Road in the vicinity of the Moorgreen 
Recreation Ground car park.  There is a long “SCHOOL KEEP CLEAR” 
zigzag marking outside the main entrance to the school, which is in 
force at all times.  At the times of the site visits, the existing “no 
stopping” and “no waiting” restrictions appeared to be well observed.

6. There is a footpath leading from Brookside Way to Moorgreen Road, 
which emerges adjacent to the School Crossing Patrol on Moorgreen 
Road.  The exit to this footpath is protected by pedestrian guard railing 
which prevents pedestrians from running out into the carriageway and 
encourages them to make use of the designated crossing point.

7. The school has a large car park which is open in the mornings to allow 
parents to drop off children in the “loop” between the car park entrance 
and exit.  This practice means that parents then don’t have to turn 
around in Monarch Way, which would increase the risk of accidents 
between manoeuvring vehicles and pedestrians.  However, it also 
increases vehicle movements within the school, and on Monarch Way.

81



Eastleigh Borough Council

8. The school encourages pupils to travel by sustainable means, and it 
was observed that many children do walk, scoot or cycle to school.

82



9.

Issues

Issue Engineer’s response

a) Complaints about 
inconsiderate parking by 
parents and staff in 
Monarch Way and 
Brookside Way; parking in 
Monarch Way 
immediately south of the 
school car park exit 
impedes visibility of 
oncoming traffic

Long stay parking (not parents 
dropping off/collecting children) 
immediately south of the school 
exit and in the turning head outside 
No 22 Monarch Way has been 
observed during site visits. It was 
noted that a number of parents 
park in Brookside Way when 
dropping off or collecting their 
children; this is a quiet road not in 
the immediate environs of the 
school.  This is a suitable road for 
parents to park, and they have the 
benefit of utilising the footpath 
which emerges onto Moorgreen 
Road adjacent to the School 
crossing patrol. Any proposal for 
waiting restrictions in this road is 
more likely to disbenefit the 
residents than deter inconsiderate 
parent parking.  However, waiting 
restrictions are proposed to be 
introduced immediately adjacent to 
the school car park exit, to improve 
visibility for motorists leaving the 
school car park.

b) Complaints from residents 
of Barrowfields Close 
about inconsiderate 
parking by parents at the 
junction of Barrowfields 
Close with Moorgreen 
Road

It was observed on site 
visits that cars are parked 
up to the junction, severely 
reducing visibility for drivers 
exiting Barrowfields Close.  
The introduction of waiting 
restrictions at the junction 
would encourage more 
considerate behaviour and 
improve visibility for junction 
users.

83



Eastleigh Borough Council

c) Congestion on 
Moorgreen Road at peak 
times, which overwhelms 
the traffic calming 
system, and can lead to 
vehicles which have right 
of way having to give way 
to oncoming traffic in 
order to relieve the 
congestion.  When there 
is less traffic, it is 
common to observe 
vehicles racing between 
the buildouts on either 
side of Monarch Way to 
beat oncoming traffic.  

The head teacher has 
requested that the buildout 
adjacent to the junction of 
Moorgreen Road and 
Monarch Way be removed.  
This will be forwarded to 
Hampshire County Council 
for their consideration

d) Cars have been driving 
on the footway to avoid 
the buildout outside No 
61 Moorgreen Road.  
This has been observed 
during site visits; the 
head teacher has also 
observed this behaviour 
on several occasions.

Cars being driven on the 
footway are at risk of coming 
into conflict with pedestrians 
and cyclists and and 
increases the potential for 
damage to the kerb and 
footway.  This will be 
forwarded to Hampshire 
County Council with a 
request for a bollard to be 
installed to deter this 
behaviour

e) Parking on the footway on 
the bridge over the 
motorway, leading to 
possible structural issues

This issue has been reported 
to Highways England.  Their 
response is that the most 
recent assessment of the 
bridge doesn’t appear to 
show any immediate capacity 
problem, but they will 
arrange for a more detailed 
review and analysis to be 
undertaken.  

f) Lamp column obscuring 
“children/ patrol”warning 
sign

This has been reported to 
Hampshire County Council 
streetlighting, with a request 
to relocate the sign, 
“wigwags” (amber flashing 
lights) and lamp unit onto the 
adjacent lamp column and 
remove the redundant post.  

84



Eastleigh Borough Council

This work has now been 
carried out.

Financial Implications

10. The proposed waiting restrictions would be funded from the Hampshire 
County Council Highways Agency budget, as part of a “Various Roads” TRO 
for the HEWEB area, at a cost of approx. £4500 

Risk Assessment

11. If the TRO is not progressed it is likely that vehicles will continue to be parked 
in a hazardous and obstructive manner, potentially increasing collision risks 
and inconveniencing residents;

Equality and Diversity Implications

12. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision and an Equality Impact 
Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out and attached as an appendix to the 
report.  In summary the EqIA shows that the recommended actions would 
improve road safety for pedestrians, particularly school children.  These 
actions would also contribute towards improving air quality which 
disproportionately affects some young and old people and people with 
underlying health conditions..

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

13. The proposals may decrease greenhouse gas/ CO2 emissions by reducing 
congestion.  Greenhouse gas/ CO2 emissions may be further reduced by 
encouragement to travel to school by more sustainable methods than the 
private car.

Conclusion

14. The proposed actions would reduce the hazards to vulnerable road users, 
particularly schoolchildren and would improve road safety at the junction of 
Barrowfields Close and Moorgreen Road

Barbara Thomas
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ENGINEER

Date: 4 February 2020
Contact Officer: Barbara Thomas
Tel No: 02380 688231
e-mail: barbara.thomas@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: Appendix 1 Equality Impact Assessment

Appendix 2 Photographs

85



Eastleigh Borough Council

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

None.

86



Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

Title of EqIA:

St James Primary School, West End
Traffic study 

Brief description of  
the Proposal:

Recommendations  are to initiate work to introduce waiting 
restrictions.  Hampshire County Council will be asked to , 
install a bollard to prevent vehicles driving on a footway, 
remove a traffic island to reduce congestion and to replace 
“School keep clear” signs and road markings.

Assessment:

For all of categories below please consider:
1. Does this proposal eliminate unlawful discrimination?
2. Does this proposal advance equality of opportunity between people who share 

a protected characteristic and those who do not share it? 
3. Does this proposal foster good relations between people who share a 

protected characteristic and those who do not share it?

Statutory Considerations: Please highlight what impact could there be on people 
with protected characteristics. 

Age: None

Disability: Improving access for pedestrians, including wheelchair 
users

Gender: None

Gender reassignment: None

Pregnancy and 
Maternity:

None

87



Race: None

Religion or belief: None

Sexual Orientation: None

Marriage and civil 
partnership:

None

Non statutory considerations: Please highlight what impact could there be on 
people experiencing social deprivation.

Social deprivation: Improving access for pedestrians

What engagement or 
consultation has been 
carried out?

N/A

What could reduce 
any adverse impact on 
these groups?

N/A

Action Plan 

Activity Outcome Timeframe Person 
responsible

Implement 
recommendations 
if approved by the 
Committee

As above As prioritised in 
future “Various 
Roads” TRO 

Barbara Thomas 

88



Lead Officer: Barbara Thomas 

Manager: David Pickett

Corporate Director: Natalie Wigman

Date completed: 14 January 2020

89



This page is intentionally left blank



St James School Study.  

Appendix 2 

Parked cars adjacent to exit to school car park

91



Traffic island on Moorgreen Road.  A bollard on the footway adjacent to the kerb would prevent cars 
driving on the cycle bypass lane and footway

Incorrectly marked “School Keep Clear” zigzags and associated sign – the “no stopping” roundel is no 
longer visible

92



Kerb buildout on Moorgreen Road at its junction with Monarch Way.  Removal or relocation of this 
traffic calming feature may assist in relieving peak time congestion and reduce instances of cars 
“racing” between this and the next buildout to the south.

93



“Children” warning sign obscured by lamp column.  Hampshire streetlighting has now moved the 
sign, wigwags and lamp unit onto the lamp column

94


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Financial Management
	8 Hedge End West End and Botley Youth Grants 2019 - 20
	HEWEB Youth Grants 2019 - 20 - Appendix 1

	9 Hedge End West End and Botley Various Roads Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)
	10 Cheltenham Gardens Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)
	Cheltenham Gardens - Appendix 1
	Cheltenham Gardens - Appendix 2
	Cheltenham Gardens - Appendix 3

	11 Berrywood School Traffic Study
	Berrywood School - Appendix 1
	Berrywood School - Appendix 2

	12 St James' School Traffic Study
	St James School - Appendix 1
	St James Report - Appendix 2


